
Minutes
Loxahatchee Groves

Canvassing Board Meeting &Regular Town Council Meeting
March 17, 2009

Location: LGWCD

.Town Canvassing Board Members Present:

Dave Browning, Mayor

Dave Autrey, Council Member

Dennis C. Lipp, Council Member

Dr. J. William Louda, Council Member

Matthew Lippman, Interim Town Clerk (NCS)-Chair of Board

Members Absent:

None

Others Attending:

Michelle Kantor, Interim Assistant Town Clerk (NCS)

David Tolces., Esq., Town Attorney

Members of the Public

Others Absent:

Dr. Irv Rosenbaum, Interim Town Manager (NCS)

1. -4. Call to OrderlPledge of Allegiance/Invocation/Roll Call

Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 6:55p.m. He then requested the roll call by Town
Clerk Lippman. Mayor Browning requested everyone stand for the Pledge of Allegiance and
Invocation. Town Clerk Lippman then called the roll for the Canvassing Board.

CANVASSING BOARD AGENDA:

5. Canvass the Official Results of the March 10, 2009 Municipal Election as provided
by the Palm Beach County Supervisor's of Election Office: Approval ofCertificate
which contains the total number
ofvotes cast for candidate in the March 10, 2009 Municipal Election. (This certificate
will be placed on file with the Town Clerk)



Councilman Louda made a MOTION to approve the certification of the total number of
votes cast for candidates in the March 10, 2009 Town of Loxahatchee Groves Municipal
Election, SECONDED by Councilman Autrey and the MOTION passed unanimously 5.0.

6. Adjournment

Councilman Lipp MOTIONED to adjourn the meeting, SECONDED by
Councilman Autrey and the Motion passed unanimously 5-0.

There being no further discussion and no additional pUblic comment the meeting was

adjoumed at 6:56p.m.

ATTEST:

Matthew Lippman, Town Clerk Date Approved

LGTC-Canvassing Board Meeling and Regular Town Council Meeting
03-17-09 Page 2 of 11
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS)



Council Members Present:

Dave Browning, Mayor

Marge Herzog, Vice-Mayor and Ryan Liang

Dave Browning, Mayor

Dave Autrey, Council Member and Ronald Dale Jarriel

Dennis C. Lipp, Council Member

Dr. J. William Louda, Council Member

Members Absent:

None

Others Attending:

Matthew Lippman, Interim Town Clerk (NCS)

Michelle Kantor, Interim Assistant Town Clerk (NCS)

David Tolces., Esq., Town Attorney

Members of the Public

Others Absent:

Dr. Irv Rosenbaum, Interim Town Manager (NCS)

1. - 5. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Invocation/Roll CalUSwearing in of New

Town Council Members

Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:00p.m. He then requested the roll call by Town
Clerk Lippman. Mayor Browning requested everyone stand for the Pledge of Allegiance and
Invocation. Town Clerk Lippman then called the roll for the old Council.

PRESENTATlON BY THE MAYOR

Mayor Browning said we have 2 Council Members who will be leaving the dais tonight. He first
called Vice-Mayor Herzog to the front and presented her with a thank you plaque for all her hard
lIVork. He then called Councilman Autrey to the front arid presented him with a thank you plaque
as well.

At this point, Ms. Herzog and Mr. Autrey became Members of the Public.

LGTC"Canvassing Board Meeting and RegUlar Town Council Meeting
03-17-09 Page 3 of 11
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS)



Town Attorney Tolces said the Town Clerk will swear in the new Town Council Members and
once they sign the Oath of Office they will take their place on the dais.

Town Clerk Lippman swore in Ronald Dale Jarriel as Seat 1 and he took over Councilman Dave
Autrey's seat.

Town Clerk Lippman swore in Ryan Liang as Seat 3 and he took over Vice-Mayor Marge
Herzog's seat.

Town Clerk Lippman then called another roll for the new Council.

5. Approval ofAgenda

Town Attorney Tolces pointed out the Supplemental Agenda Item that had been added to the
Agenda.

Councilman Louda MOTIONED to approve the amended Agenda, SECONDED by
Councilman Lipp and the Motion passed unanimously 5-6.

Mayor Browning moved to Item #6.

6. Supplemental Agenda Item: Request to participate in DOAH Proceeding (Roebuck
Road) - City ofWPB Comp Plan Amendment

Town Attorney Tolces said first I would like to congratulate the 2 new Council Members. He said
yesterday I received an email and phone call from Trilla White, the attorney for the Village of
Royal Palm Beach, concerning whether or not the Town would be interested in participating in a
DOAH Proceeding which is set to commence in the Division of Administrative Hearing and it
relates to the Notice of Intent that the DCA issued to find the City of West Palm Beach's recent
Comprehensive Plan Amendment in compliance. He said I was advised by Ms. White that the
Village of Royal Palm Beach was looking to file a petition objecting to that finding by DCA due to
the fact that there is certain Language in the City of West Palm Beach's Comprehensive Plan
Amendment regarding Roebuck Road. He said the City of West Palm Beach while it is
including Roebuck Road in its traffic improvement map it has added certain comments to the
Comprehensive Plan in which they state, while Roebuck Road is considered in the table solely
for the purpose of the consistency with the Palm Beach County Comprehensive Plan Maps. He
said and the City states that this inclusion does not reflect the City's position on the future
development of these roads, and this inclusion does not restrict the City's right to amend this
table if environmental permits for such roads are not issued. He said it is my understanding that
mainly this road was added in order to alleviate traffic impacts associated with certain

LGTC"Canvassing Board Meeting and Regular Town Council Meeting
03-17-09 Page 4 oflI
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS)



development. He said the road would be on the North side of Okeechobee between Jog and
SR 441. He said we've been asked to join in the proceeding due to the potential adverse
impacts to the Town that might result if Roebuck Road is not constructed. He said The Village
of Royal Palm Beach is also claiming that is a breach of an agreement that was entered into
back in 1994, between the County, The City of West Palm Beach, and the Village of Royal Palm
Beach. He said while the Town wasn't around at that time the potential impacts that could result
are here and now if that road isn't constructed. He said due to the fact that the 21 days to file a
petition will expire before your next meeting, I brought this to you tonight to see if you wanted to
direct our office to file a petition on behalf of the Town in support of The Village of Royal Palm
Beach and the County's objecting to the City's Comp Plan Amendment.

Councilman Lipp MOTtONED to direct the Town's Attorney to participate in the DOAH
Proceeding for Roebuck Road and the City ofWPB Comp Plan Amendment, SECONDED

by
Councilman Louda and discussion was then opened:

Councilman Lipp said this has been going on for a very long time and for those of you who don't
know, Roebuck Road was supposed to be paid for by all these developments that you see
along there and everyone of them paid huge impact fees to put in this road and then once the
road was supposed to be built, they all of a sudden couldn't come up with the money to pay for
it. He said Commissioner Jess Santamaria has been fighting for everyone out here so we could
have access to the City of West Palm Beach when we need to and getting this road done is an
important part of the Westem Communities to take off all the pressure on Okeechobee. He said
because with the growth that is going to come here we do need to see this go through and I
would encourage everyone to vote in favor of it.

Councilman Louda said I took the liberty of sketching out something and then handed it out (see
below).

LGTC-Canvassing Board Meeting and Regular Town Council Meeting
03-17-09 Page 5 of 11
Prepared by Michelle Kentor (NCS)



Suggested slatement from the Town ofLoxahatchee Groves regarding Roebuck Road.

The Town ofLoxahatchee Groves fully supports the governments ofthe Village ofRoyal
Palm Beach and Palm Beach Couoty in their efforts to have Roebuck Road built in order to
relieve traffic pressures on Okeechobee Boulevard.

The Town ofLoxahatchee OroveS, in cooperation with Indian Trails Improvement
District and Palm Beach Comity, recently was successful in having 140th Street / E-Road deleted
from the Couoty's Thoroughfare Identification Map, In this case, both Loxahatchee groves and
the Acreage were long time existing commuoities when a new thoroughfare was identified. Thus,
the thoroughfare Was to dissect existing communities. Such is no the'case with Roebuck Road.
Roebuck Road was identified prior to the development ofthe communities which it will skirt.
That is, these communities were built and occupied knowing full well that a road was to be built
on their periphery. In fact, that knowledge and agreement as a condition was part ofthe
permitting process. .

Additionally, with proper drainage and landscaping, Roebuck Road west ofJog Road
could easily be built as a beautiful rursl parkway without endangering the West Palm Beach
Water Catchment or Pond Cypress Natunl1 areas. As to water supplies, West Palm Beach is well
suited to explore desalinstion methodologies for potable water and the use ofreclaimed wster for
landscape irrigation. The water catchment ares could then serve as • recharge ares for the
surficial aquifer to aid in holding hack salt water intrusion.

To reiterate, the Town ofLoxahatchee Oroves, which is bisected by Okeechobee
Boulevard, is in full support ofthe Village ofRoyal Palm Beach and Palm Beach Couoty in
requesting that the D.C.A. rescind its approval ofthe current Comprehensive Plan Amendment
ofWest Palm Beach (Docket No. 08-2ER-NOI-5038-{A)-(I) ) in as far as it relates to delaying
or stopping the development ofRoebuck Road.

J. Wm. Loud. 3/16/09

Councilman Louda said the reason I threw in mention of. E Ro.adl~ ~Ot.h was that if we obje.ct to
this road somebody is going to come back with it. He said I thmk It IS Important that we pomt out

LGTC,Canvassing Board Meeting and Regular Town Council Meeting
03-17-Q9 Page 6 of 11
Ptepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS)



the difference in these two roads. He said we were here and they dropped a road in the middle
of us and they weren't there and they said you can be here if. He said and there is a huge
difference in these two scenarios.

Councilman Jarriel said Roebuck Road is long over road and as a reliever road we needed it 4
or 5 years ago, so I am in support of The Village of Royal Palm Beach and Palm Beach County.
He said and one thing I frown of is when people make an agreement and then try to back out of
the agreement and the City of West Palm Beach had no right to do that.

Mayor Browning said I agree.

The Motion passed unanimously 5-0.

Mayor Browning moved to Item #7.

7. Administration Update

Town Clerk Lippman said I will be sitting down with the 2 new Council Members individually to
catch you up and give you a preview of the meeting coming up to get you up to speed.

a. Mayor & Vice Mayor will be appointed at the April 7, 2009 Town Council
Meeting

Town Clerk Lippman said according to the Town Charter the 4th Tuesday after an election is
when you appoint a Mayor and a Vice-Mayor for a term of one year and that will occur on
Tuesday, April 7, 2009, which is your next Town Council Meeting and we will begin the meeting
by appointing a Mayor and a Vice-Mayor of Loxahatchee Groves.

b. RFQ 2009-001 Presentations moved to 4/7/09 meeting. These are the firms that
were short-listed:

i. Calvin-Giordano & Associates
ii. Crossroads Environmental
iii. Gentile, Holloway, O'Mahoney, & Associates, Inc.
iv. The Mellgren Planning Group
v. Miller Legg

Town Clerk Lippman said the presentations for the Environmental Regulations will be held that
night and each of them have 3-5 minutes for their presentation, and I believe the two new
Council Members have their packets and I will be walking them through that as well.

LGTC-Canvassing Board Meeling and Regular Town Council Meeling
03-17-09 Page 7 of 11
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS)



c. IGC Meeting Summary and Report will be made by Councilman Louda at the
4/7/07 Meeting

Town Clerk Lippman said the IGC Meeting Summary and Report will be provided to us in an
update by Councilman Louda at the next meeting. He said there is a lot of material that we
covered and we are moving forward on some of the items but we do have a little time right now
to wait for the report and we will be talking about that as well.

d. Discussion ofLand Use Plan Amendment Process will be on the 417/07 agenda.

Town Clerk Lippman said we presented a Memorandum to the Council Members and we will get
the two new Council Members as well, in relation to the Moratorium Exemptions and how it
applies to the LUPA's, and there is some direction and decision making we need from the
Council and that will be coming up as well.

e. RFQ 2009-002 (Land Development Regulations): Issued Wed., 3-4-09 and due by
Wed., 4-15-69

Town Clerk Lippman said I am just reminding you as well, the Land Development Regulations
RFQ, has already been issued, according to the approval of the Town Council and it is already
out there and has been advertised, and is due on April 15, 2009 coming up.

f. Master Road and Equestrian Greenway Trail Plan (M.R.E.G.) & SR 80 (Southern
Blvd.) Corridor Study update

Town Clerk Lippman said I will get with all five of you tonight to see what your availability is
tomorrow and Thursday to meet personally with Jeff Maxwell to get your copy of the MREG and
to go over all the logistics of it so he can walk you through it and once that occurs it will be
released on the website and to the public.

Town Clerk Lippman said the Agenda coming up on Tuesday, April 7, 2009 is pretty heavy and
we have a lot of topics to get caught up on. He said we need to keep our time wise, we have a
lot of important topics to discuss and hopefully we can get through it" and I look forward to
sitting down with Councilman Liang and Councilman Jarriel to get them caught up to speed.

Mayor Browning moved to Item #8.

LGTC-Canvassing Board Meeling and RegUlar Town Council Meeling
03-17-09 Page 8 of 11
Prepared by Micheffe Kantor (NeS)



8. Public Comments

Donald Borovy. 14240 Tripp Road- said I still know how to build roads and I've come up here
several times asking Clete Saunier's cooperation in telling me how much it costs to spread a
little water on our roads and he's never come up with the figures. He said I don't think he
understands this is a great cost on maintaining our roads. He said if we keep putting on the kind
of material that just washes and blows away, we'll never have a dirt road that is not maintained
cheaply, but if we would buy decent material to begin with we would.

Philomena Liang. 4245 148th Terrace- said I just want to congratulate the 2 new Council
Members as a proud mother with my son sitting there right now. She then gave the two new
Council Members balloon arrangements.

Darlene Crawford. 3057 E Road-said now that the elections are over I can make a non
partisan community announcement. She said the Relay for Life for the American Cancer
Society is April 17, 2009 and I want as many people as would like to come with the
Loxahatchee Citizen's Team and Dr. Louda gave us our 1st donation and Mr. DeMarios gave
us our 2nd. She said we have a Loxahatchee Groves Citizens Team and anyone who wants to
make a donation to it should let me know.

Councilman Lipp asked is it a CERT or a Citizen's Team.

Ms. Crawford responded a Citizen's Team participating with the American Cancer Society's
Relay for Life. She said for those of you who don't know what that is, it is they have a big
Cancer survivor celebration and they will have the survivors make a lap around the track and
after that there will be a relay. She said I have from 11a.m.-7p.m. covered but if you could come
out at the beginning part we could use the help. She said I'm sure Town Clerk Lippman will help
with posting the event on the Town's website.

Town Clerk Lippman responded yes.

Councilman Louda said the donations are usually done in the honor or in memory of someone
or on behalf of someone who has survived Cancer and there are also candles that are lighted.

Ms. Crawford said the candles are put out in memory or support of people who have had or
have Cancer.

Marge Herzog. 966 A Road- said congratulations to the winners. She said it was a nice event
that we had. She said I want to announce to the Public on the 27th there will be a 2nd
Anniversary of the Town celebration hosted by the LGLA and it will be at the Loxahatchee
Groves Elementary School and I would encourage all the Council and Staff to be there to see
the Chili Chicks. She also mentioned the adopt a road on the 21st.

Mayor Browning moved to Item #9.

LGTC-Canvassing Board Meeting and Regular Town Council Meeting
03-17-09 Page 9 of 11
Prepared by Michelle Kantor (NCS)



9. Town Clerk Comments

Town Clerk Lippman said I look forward to working with the five of you and I look forward to
providing education to the two new Council Members to allow them to make the right decisions
with the right information. He said I think the important thing now is to keep the momentum that
we've had for two years and new fresh blood always brings new ideas to the dais and we look
forward to hearing them. He said let's just keep the momentum going and keep the Town going.
He said congratulations to the two of you and I look forward to working with the five of you.

Mayor Browning moved to Item #10.

10. Town Attorney Comments

Town Attorney Tolces thanked Marge and Dave for their service to the Town and said I enjoyed
working with you and will continue to enjoy seeing you at these meetings. He said I want to
congratulate Ryan and Ron on their election and on behalf of myself and our entire law firm, we
look forward in working with you and the rest of the Council and as Matt said, we would like to
keep this momentum going, we've got a lot of challenges ahead and continue to make the Town
what you all an your residents think it should be.

Mayor Browning moved to Item #11.

11. Council Member Comments

Councilman Lipp said I would like to welcome two new Councilman to the dais and we look
forward to having a productive three years from you guys and you're not going to get any rest.
He said it will be a new beginning for the Town.

Councilman Jarriel said I am proud to be up here on the Council and I think you've got a good
group of people up here. He said I think we are here to listen to the people and to serve the
people and that is my main concern is being a good public servant. He said everybody in this
room, I've seen you on election day and it doesn't matter who you voted for, I
appreciate you taking time to come out and vote, and for all my supporters and Ryan's
supporters, and especially our campaign people, they worked hard, and I want to give credit to
my wife while I can, she had my endure, He said I appreciate all of you here and I ask the ones
who supported me and whoever you supported that we continue to have a crowd like this at our
Council Meetings because this is the only way you can really stay informed for you to sit here,
listen to the meetings, and voice your opinions and stuff like that. He said thank you again.

LGTC-Canvassing Board Meeting and Regular Town Council Meeting
03-17-09 Page 10 of 11
Propared by Michelle Kentor (NCS)



~~
MAYOR DAVE BROWNING 0-

Councilman Liang said I would like to first Thank God for giving me this opportunity to listen to
the people and let their voices be heard. He said I would also like to thank my family and my
friends for all their support. He said during my campaign I met so many people that helped me
and I met complete strangers and they came and told me they were helping to campaign and it
was a great thing to see and experience. He said and less than two months ago nobody knew
who I was and today almost everybody has at least seen my picture and I would just like to tell
the people that I will do my best to listen to you and listen to the will of the people. Thank you.

Councilman Louda said congratulations to the two new Councilman. He said you don't have to
change your 1040's because the pay is not going to change anything and you don't get overtime
pay, although there is overtime and be for warned that the two meetings a month are not all you
are called upon and if I can help during the meeting, because one thing you will learn is when
we go out the door, we can't talk to each other anymore. He said welcome and please during
your meetings with Matthew, listen because he is pretty on the ball and he knows what he is
doing. He said welcome to the Board and let's have a good year.

Mayor Browning said thank you to David and Marge for their service again to Loxahatchee
Groves, these first two years have been unique but a lot of hard work and a lot of effort. He said
I want to welcome our two new Council Members, they have shown the heart of the Community,
and I look forward to a time of cooperation with our neighboring Board, and we are looking for
great things for the residents of Loxahatchee Groves, so thank you all and welcome.

Mayor Browning moved to Item #12.

12. Adjournment

Councilman Louda MOTIONED to adjourn the meeting, SECONDED by
Councilman Lipp and the Motion passed unanimously 5-0.

There being no further discussion and no additional public comment the meeting was

adjourned at 7:25p..m.

ATTEST:

~Ma ew Lippman, wn Clerk
~-d---------

LGTC-Canvassing Board Meeting and Regular Town Council Meeting
03-17-09 Page 11 of 11
PlOpared by Michelle Kantor (NeS)


